
Mr. GROMYKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) suggested that they would be able to
discuss the substance of the report of Sub-Com­
mittee 9 only after the text were available. Ap­
parently it was not yet ready and though they
might listen to the Rapporteur, they would be
unable to read the report and study it. He sug­
gested'they might adjourn until the following
morning. His delegation had predicted that the
United States would attempt exactly their pres­
ent tactics, both in the General Assembly and in

. the Security Council. It had been foreseen that
they would attempt to push through their pro­
posals at the last moment on the plea of urgency.
Now their proposal had come forward within
twenty-four hours of the termination of the
mandate. The General Assembly should not al­
low itself to fall into confusion.

The meeting rose at 7.5 p.m.

HUNDRED AND FORTIETH MEETING

Held at Lake S,uccess, New York, on Thursday,
13 May 1948, at 9 p.m.

Chairman: Mr. T. F. TSIANG (China).

26. Consideration of the report of Sub­
Committee 9 (document A/C.l/299)

Mr. MOE (Norway), the Rapporteur of
Sub-Committee 9, pr~ented the report of the
Sub-Committee (document A/C.l/299).

Mr. JESSUP (United States of America) said
that during the past four weeks, the Assembly
had sought a peaceful solution for the Palestine
problem, which would commend itself to the
Assembly and to the Jews and Arabs. They had
listened to the statements of the Mandatory Pow­
er and the arguments of the two parties. They
had considered the possibility of a temporary
trusteeship, pending an agreed solution. In Sub­
Committee 9 they had considered detailed pro­
posals for minimum practical steps which might
be taken, but these were subject to exception by
both of the two parties.

Out of those discussions a number of facts
had emerged. It had not been possible in the
available time to find a peaceful solution accept­
able to both parties. The Jewish Agency, as well
as some of the members of the Committee, would
not agree to any solution which failed to guar­
antee the establishment of a Jewish State. The
Arab Higher Committee and other members of
the Committee would not agree to any such so­
lution. No proposal had been made which would
enable peaceful implementation of resolution
181(H) of 29 November 1947. No proposal had
been made which would permit the implementa­
tion of the resolution by the use of United
Nations forces. The proposal for temporary trus­
teeship (document A/C.1/277) had commended

M. GROMYKO (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) signale que la Commission ne
pourra discuter le fond du rapport de la Sous­
Commission avant que le texte n'en soit distri­
bue. Ce texte ne semble pas etre encore pret et
bien que la Commission puisse entendre.le Rap­
porteur de ladite Sous-Commission, eUe ne
pourra pas prendre connaissance du rapport ni
l'etudier. Aussi, l'orateur propose-t-il d'ajourner
la seance jusqu'au lendemain matin. Sa dele­
gation avait predit que les Etats-Unis emploie­
raient exactement la tactique qu'ils viennent
d'adopter, aussi bien a l'Assemblee qu'au Con­
seil de securite. On a prevu qu'ils invoqueraient,
a la derniere minute, le manque de temps pour
essayer de faire adopter leur proposition. lis
viennent maintenant de presenter leur propo­
sition vingt-quatre heures avant l'expiration du
Mandat. L'Assemblee generale ne doit pas se
laisser aller au desarroi.

La seance est levee a 19 h. 5.

CENT-QUARANTIEME SEANCE

T enue aLake Success, N ew-York, le jeudi
13 mai 1948, a21 heures.

President: M. T. F. TSIANG (Chine).

26. Examen du rapport de la Sous-Com­
mission 9 (document A/C.l/299)

M. MOE (Norvege), Rapporteur de la Sous­
Commission 9, presente le rapport de cette
Sous-Commission (document AjC.1/299).

M. JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) declare
que, au cours des quatres dernieres semaines,
l'Assemblee a recherche une solution pacifique
de la question palestihienne, qui s'imposerait a
l'Assemblee ainsi qu'aux Juifs et aux Arabes.
Elle a entendu les declarations de la Puissance
mandataire et les arguments avances par les
deux parties. ElIe a examine la possibilite
d'etabIir un regime de tuteUe provisoire en at­
tendant que l'on se soit mis d'accord sur une
solution. La Sous-Commission 9 a examine des
propositions detaiIIees concernant les mesures
pratiques minima que l'on pourrait prendre,
mais ces propositions se sont heurtees aux cri­
tiques des deux parties.

Ces discussions ont revele un certain nombre
de faits. 1I n'a pas ete possible, dans le temps
dont on disposait, de trouver une solution ac­
ceptable pour les deux parties. L'Agence juive,
de meme que certains des membres de la Com­
mission, n'accepte pas une solution qui n'assu­
rerait pas la creation d'un Etat juif. Le Haut
Comite arabe et d'autres membres de la Com­
mission n'acceptent pas une solution qui garan­
tirait cette creation. Aucune proposition n'a ete
soumise qui permette d'appliquer pacifiquement
la resolution 18l(H) du 29 novembre 1947. Au­
cune proposition non plus ne permet de recourir
aux, forces armees de l'Organisation des Nations
Unies pour mettre la resolution en application.
La proposition d'un regime de tuteUe provisoire

242



itself to many members. However, neither Jews
nor Arabs were willing to sacrifice their inter­
ests to enable a temporary trusteeship to operate
effectively. It was clear that, in the absence of
agreement between the parties, armed forces
would be essential to any trusteeship plan. The
United States had offered to contribute a share
of the required forces and had approached cer­
tain other Governments which it felt might
have a similar interest . . . but these Govern­
ments were not in a position to participate.
finally, the United Kingdom would lay down
its Mandate at midnight Friday, which was
6 p.m. New York time.

Those facts raised the question whether there
was any action which the United Nations could
usefully take in the situation about to confront
the world. To that question, Mr. Jessup gave
an affirmative answer. There was much that the
United Nations could do, not only in the few
hours until the end of the Mandate, but also
afterwards until the two communities in Pales­
tine should agree on the future of their coun­
try. The situation was that the Jewish and Arab
communities had rejected all efforts to find a
peaceful solution of their differences. In the
view of the United States delegation, the United
Nations had no power, under the Charter, to
impose a political decision against the will of
the people concerned. At the same time, the Se­
curity Council had the right to use its powers
under Chapter VII for the maintenance of peace
and security. Although violence in Palestine
might be expected shortly, it was not possible, on
the basis of available information, to determine
whether a threat to international peace would
exist and consequently whether force, or other
measures short of force, might be required.

Meantime, the Security Council had made
diligent efforts to bring hostilities to an end
through the medium of its Truce Commission.
In the course of its work, as a member of this
Commission, and after sJiscussions with Jewish
and Arab representatives, the United States had
proposed articles of truce which Mr. Jessup
wished to draw to the attention of the Commit­
tee. Those truce terms were no last minute effort
but the result of weeks of intensive discussion
with Jewish and Arab representatives in both
New York and Palestine. His Government be­
lieved that the terms were fair and equitable
and, had they been accepted, they would have
provided both the Assembly and the two parties
with an opportunity for calm consideration of
the problem of the future government of Pales­
tine. Mr. Jessup wished to call particular atten­
tion to articles 5 and 11, reading as follows:

(document A/C.l/277) a recueilIi I'approbation
de plusieurs membres. Neanmoins, ni les Juifs
ni les Arabs ne sont disposes a sacrifier leurs
interets pour permettre a un regime de tutelle
provisoire de fonctionner effectivement. II est
evident que, en I'absence d'un accord entre les
parties, un plan de tutelle devrait reposer sur la
force armee. Les Etats-Unis ont offert de four­
nir leur part du contingent necessaire et ils se
sont adresses a plusieurs autres Gouvernements
qui auraient pu, semble-t-il, avoir un interet
analogue ... mais ces Gouvernements n'etaient
pas en mesure d'accorder leur concours. Enfin,
le Royaume-Uni va resigner son Mandat ven­
dredi a minuit, c'est-a-dire a 18 heures, heure de
New-York.

En presence de ces evenements, iI importe de
savoir si I'Organisation des Nations Unies sera a
meme d'intervenir utilement dans la situation
devant laquelle le monde va se trouver. M. Jes­
sup repond par I'affirmative. L'organisation des
Nations Unies peut faire beaucoup, non seule­
ment dans les quelques heures qui vont s'ecou­
ler avant I'expiration du Mandat, mais egale­
ment ensuite, jusqu'a ce que les deux commu­
nautes de Palestine se soient mises d'accord sur
I'avenir de leur pays. Les difficultes proviennent
de ce que les communautes arabe et juive ont re­
jete toutes les tentatives de resoudre pacifique­
ment leur differend. La delegation des Etats­
Unis estime que les termes de la Charte ne per­
mettent pas a I'Organisation des Nations Unies
d'imposer une decision politique contre la vo­
lonte des populations interessees. Par contre, le
Conseil de securite a le droit de faire usage des
pouvoirs que le Chapitre VII lui confere pour
maintenir la paix et la securite. Bien que I'on
puisse s'attendre a ce que des actes de violence
se produisent sous peu en Palestine, il est impos­
sible, en se fondant sur les renseignements dont
on dispose, de preciser s'il y aura menace a la
paix internationale et s'il sera par consequent
necessaire d'avoir recours a des mesures impli­
quant ou n'impliquant pas l'emploi de la force
armee.

Entre temps, le ConseiI de securite a fait dili­
gence pour mettre fin aux hostilites par I'inter­
mediaire de la Commission de treve qu'il a creee.
Au cours des travaux de cette derniere Commis­
sion et apres avoir examine le probleme avec les
representants des Juifs et des Arabes, les Etats­
Unis, en qualite de membre de la Commission,
ont propose des conditions de treve sur lesquels
M. Jessup tient a appeler I'attention de ses au­
diteurs. Ces conditions de treve ne constituent pas
une tentative de la derniere heure; elle~ sont le
resultat de plusieurs semaines de discussions mi­
nutieuses avec les representants des Juifs et des
Arabes, tant a New-York qu'en Palestine. Le
Gouvernement des Etats-Unis estime que ces
conditions sont justes et equitables et que si eIles
avaient ete acceptees, elles auraient permis, tant
a I'Assemblee qu'aux deux parties interessees,
d'aborder avec calme l'examen de la question
du gouvernement futur de la Palestine. M. Jessup
tient asignaler, en particulier, les articles 5 et 11
dont void le texte:

243



Article 5. During the period of the truce, and
without prejudice to the future governmental
structure of Palestine, existing Arab and Jewish
authorities shall function as Temporary Truce
Regimes in the areas in which such authorities
are now exercising control and shall accord full
and equal rights to all inhabitants in such areas.

Article 11. During the period of the truce,
and without prejudice to future decisions on the
question of immigration, the Arab Higher Com­
mittee and the Jewish Agency for Palestine ac­
cept, as a matter of emergency, the authority of
the Security Council Truce Commission to deal
with the question of immigration into Palestine.

Reviewing the developments leading to the
current situation regarding the truce, Mr. Jes­
sup recalled that after 29 November 1947 the
United States attempted diplomatically to urge
moderation on the interested parties in order
that peaceful implementation might be possible.
On 16 February the Palestine Commission had
referred to the Security Council the problem of
providing the necessary armed assistance to en­
able the Commission to discharge its responsibil­
ities (document S/676). On 26 Februaryl the
United States introduced a draft resolution (doc­
ument S/685) in the Security Council, the first
paragraph of which provided for acceptance of
the Assembly's requests concerning the imple­
mentation of partition. That proposal failed to
receive the necessary support.

The remainder of the resolution, providing
for consultation by the permanent 'members
with representatives of the Jewish Agency, the
Arab Higher Committee, the Mandatory Pow­
er and the Palestine Commission, was accepted
on 5 March.2 The consultation revealed that
none of those representatives believed that the
partition plan could be implemented peacefully.
It also emerged that the permanent members did
not find that the situation in Palestine consti­
tuted a threat to international peace and secu­
rity.

In that dilemma, the easy course would have
been to do nothing. The difficult course was to
take direct action to maintain peace. The United
States Government believed, however, that any
action should be without prejudice to the even­
tual solution and should leave the parties free
to adjust their differences. Accordingly, on
19 March3 the United States representative in the
Security Council advocated a truce arrangement
and a temporary trusteeship which would pro­
vide a framework of government pending the
evolution of a peaceful solution acceptable to

1 See Official Records of the Security Council, Third
Year. No. 24.

2 Ibid., No. 30.
• Ibid., No. 36.

Article 5. Pendant la duree de la treve, et
sans prejuger le regime de gouvernement futur
de la Palestine, les autorites arabes et juives ac­
tuellement existantes rempliront les fonctions
d'administrations provisoires de treve dans les
zones qu'elles controlent actuellement et accor­
deront plenitude et egalite de droits a tous les
habitants desdites zones.

Article 11. Pendant la duree de la treve et
sans prejuger les decisions qui interviendront' ul­
terieurement en matiere d'immigration, le Haut
Comite arabe et l'Agence juive pour la Pales­
tine reconnaissent, a titre de mesure d'urgence,
I'autorite de la Commission de treve du Conseil
de securite en ce qui concerne I'immigration en
Palestine.

En rappelant les evenements qui ont abouti
a la situation actuelle en ce qui concerne la
treve, M. Jessup souligne que, apres le 29 no­
vembre 1947, les Etats-Unis ont tente, par la
voie diplomatique, de persuader les parties inte­
ressees de faire preuve de moderation afin que
la resolution de l'Assemblee puisse etre mise en
reuvre par des moyens pacifiques. Le 16 fevrier,
la Commission des Nations Unies pour la Pales­
tine a pose devant le Conseil de securite la ques­
tion de la constitution eventuelle de la force ar­
mee dont la Commission pourrait avoir besoin
pour remplir ses fonctions (document S/676).
Le 25 fevrier, les Etats-Unis ont presente au
Conseil de securite un projet de resolution (do­
cument S/685) dont le premier paragraphe pre­
voyait l'acceptation des requetes de l'AssembIee
au sujet de la mise a execution du plan de par­
tage. Cette proposition n'a pas ete appuyee par
un nombre suffisant de representants.

La partie suivante du projet de resolution,
celle qui prevoyait des consultations entre les
membres permanents, d'une part, et les repre­
sentants de I'Agence juive, du Haut Comite
arabe, de la Puissance mandataire, ainsi que la
Commission pour la Palestine, d'autre part, a
ete adoptee le 5 mars2

• Ces consultations ont re­
vele qu'aucun des representants mentionnes ci­
dessus ne croyait a la mise a execution pacifique
de ce plan; il s'est avere egalement que, de l'avis
des membres permanents du Conseil de securite,
la situation en Palestine ne constituait pas une
menace a la paix et a la securite internationales.

Devant ce dilemme, la solution la plus facile
aurait ete de ne rien faire. La solution difficile
etait de prendre des mesures positives pour
maintenir la paix. Le Gouvernement des Etats­
Unis estimait cependant qu'aucune des mesures
que 1'0n pouvait prendre ne devait prejuger la
solution finale et que les parties devaient garder
toute liberte pour regler le differend. En con­
sequence, le representant des Etats-Unis au Con­
seil de securite a recommande le 19 mars3 la
conclusion d'un arrangement en vue d'une treve
et I'etablissement d'un regime de tuteIle pro-

1 Voir les Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil de se­
curite, Troisieme Annee. No 24.

2 Ibid., No 30.
• Ibid., No 36.

244



both Jews and Arabs. This position was reiter­
ated by the United States Secretary of State on
the following day and emphasized by the Presi­
dent of the United States on 25 March.

visoire qui constituerait I'ossature d'un gouver­
nement en attendant I'elaboration d'une solution
pacifi9-ue susceptible d'etre acceptee tant par
les Jmfs que par les Arabes. Le Secretaire d'Etat
des Etats-Unis a repete cette proposition le len­
demain et, le 25 mars, le President des Etats­
Unis a fait de meme.

Le ler avrilI, le Conseil de securite a adopte
a I'unanimite une resolution (document S/714)
invitant les parties a observer une treve et en
meme temps, demandant la convocation de l'As­
sembIee generale en session extraordinaire afin
d'etudier a nouveau la question du gouverne­
ment futur de la Palestine. Les Etats-Unis esti­
maient necessaire d'instituer, en se fondant sur
les dispositions de la Charte, un regime provi­
soire qui remplacerait le gouvernement de la
Puissance mandataire, apres le 15 mai. Le 16
avril2

, le Conseil de securite a adopte une pro­
position visant a donner plus de force a la re­
solution relative a la treve (document S/723),
le 23 avril3

, il a etabli une Commission de treve
(document S/727).

Le representant des Etats-Unis a la Premiere
Commission a declare le 20 avril (au cours de la
118eme seance), que son pays proposait que
le regime provisoire de tutelle vienne remplacer
le partage ou toute autre solution qui aurait
I'accord des deux parties. Cette solution a ete
offerte comme mesure d'urgence susceptible,
parallelement a la treve, d'assurer l'ordre public
et de permettre la poursuite des negociations en
vue d'un reglement definitif. Il a egalement ete
precise que les Etats-Unis etaient disposes a
fournir un contingent pour la constitution des
forces armees necessaires a I'etablissement d'un
regime de tutelle. L'etablissement de la treve
apparaissait comme une condition prealable
sine qua non pour I'application du regime de
tutelle, mais la treve n'est toujours pas en vi­
gueur. En tant que membres de la Commission
de treve, les Etats-Unis ont entame les discus­
sions avec les representants juifs et arabes a
New-York. Des conversations sont sorties des
conditions de treve qui, au cas Oll elles auraient
ete acceptees, auraient provoque la cessation des
hostilites et rendu un accord possible. A certains
moments, la situation avait semble favorable, et
l'on a propose que des representants fussent en­
voyes en Palestine pour mettre au point sur
place des termes d'accord et que l'expiration du
Mandat fUt differee de 10 jours. Malheureuse­
ment cette proposition n'a ete acceptee ni par
l'Agence juive, ni par le Haut Comite arabe, ni
par les Etats arabes, ni par la Puissance man­
dataire. Neanmoins, de nouveaux efforts ont
ete entrepris et, a la fin de la semaine passee,
des conditions de treve revisees ont ete presen­
tees, mais ni I'une, ni I'autre partie ne les a en­
core acceptees.

Apres une discussion generale, la Premier:e
Commission a cree, le 4 mai, au cours de sa
137eme seance, la Sous-Commission 9, chargee
de formuler une proposition en vue de I'etablisse-

On 1 Aprilt, the Security Council adopted
unanimously a resolution (document S/714)
calling upon the parties to observe a truce, and
at the same time requesting the convocation of
a special session of the General Assembly for the
purpose of considering further the future gov­
ernment of Palestine. It was the United States
view that a provisional regime, based upon the
Charter, should be established to succeed the
Mandatory Power after 15 May. On 16 ApriF,
the Security Council approved a proposal to
make the truce resolution more effective (docu­
ment S/723), and on 23 ApriP, established a
Truce Commission (document S/727).

The United States representative in the First
Committee stated on 20 April at the 118th meet­
ing, that his country did not suggest temporary
trusteeship as a substitute for partition or any

. other agreed solution. It was put forward as an
emergency measure which might, together with
the truce, ensure public order and enable fur­
ther negotiations for a final settlement. It was
also made clear that the United States was pre­
pared to provide a share of the armed force
necessary for trusteeship. A truce was viewed as
a prerequisite but that, to date, had been lacking.
As a member of the Truce Commission, the
United States initiated discussions with Jewish
and Arab representatives in New York. Out of
those conversations arose proposals for truce ar­
ticles which, if accepted, would have led to a
cessation of hostilities and made agreement pos­
sible. At times the outlook had been hopeful and
suggestions were made that the appropriate re­
presentatives proceed to Palestine to work out
agreed terms there, and that the termination of
the Mandate be postponed for ten days. Un­
fortunately that proposal was not accepted by
the Jewish Agency, the Arab Higher Committee,
the Arab States or the Mandatory Power, Never­
theless, the endeavours were continued, and, at
the end of the previous week, revised terms of
truce had been submitted, but had not yet been
accepted by either party.

After a general debate, the First Committee at
its 137th meeting on 4 May had established
Sub-Committee 9 to formulate a proposal for a
provisional regime for Palestine. Meanwhile, the

1 See Official Records of the Sewrity Council, Third
Year. No. 52.

• Ibid., No. 58.
• Ibid., No. 62.

1 Voir les Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil de se­
curite, Troisieme Annee, No 52.

• Ibid., No 58.
I Ibid., No 62.

245



Assembly had approved at its 134th plenary
meeting a recommendation from the Trusteeship
Council (document A1544) concerning meas­
ures for the protection of Jerusalem, and Sub­
Committee 10 had considered additional meas­
ures. The United States was firm in its purpose
to provide a regime for Jerusalem which would
provide adequate protection. In Sub-Com­
mittee 9, they had welcomed the opportunity for
the development of proposals which had not
been as thoroughly examined in the First Com­
mittee as the trusteeship proposals. When the
discussions in the Sub-Committee appeared to be
leading to a common conclusion, the United
States had drafted a proposal and submitted it
that morning (document A/C.l/SC.9/t). That
was not a United States invention. It had
evolved out of the discussion and was the pro­
duct of the processes of the General Assembly.

The United States proposal was based on the
need to satisfy two conditions: first, that any
proposal should be based on the authority of the
Charter, and secondly, that it should be practical
and take into account the existing situation and
the importance of bringing an end to the conflict.
The proposals sought to add the authority of the
Assembly to the truce endeavours of the Secu­
rity Council. The second part of the proposal
rested upon mediation. Since the use of force to
impose a solution was impossible, they had been
driven to choose mediation as the central theme
of Assembly action. It was a sound procedure
and in accord with the central theory of the
Charter. Specifically, it was proposed that media­
tion should be used: to arrange for the opera­
tion of common services; to assure protection of
the Holy Places, and to promote peaceful adjust­
ment of the situation.

Mter considering all possibilities, it had been
proposed that the mediatory functions should be
exercised by an individual designated by a com­
mittee of the Assembly composed of China,
France, the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics,
the United Kingdom and the United States of
America. The mediator would not be a governor
or administrator, but a United Nations represen­
tative to offer his good offices. His presence
would make it clear that the Assembly had not
ceased its efforts to terminate the conflict after
the session had closed. The proposals sought to
unify the work of the various organs of the,
United Nations. The mediator would co-operate
with the Truce Commission of the Security
Council. His activities would conform with in­
structions issued by the Security Council. He
would report to the Security Council and
through the Secretary-General to all members.
It was also provided that the mediator might
invite the assistance of specialized agencies and
co-operate with such bodies as the International
Red Cross. In order to clarify the situation it
was considered desirable that the Assembly
should relieve the Palestine Commission from

ment d'un regime provisoire en Palestine. Entre
temps, l'Assemblee a approuve, au cours de sa
134eme seance pleniere une recommandation
du Conseil de tutelle (document A1544) con­
cernant les mesures a prendre pour la protection
de Jerusalem et la Sous-Commission 10 a exa­
mine des mesures complementaires. Les Etats­
Unis etaient ardemment desireux d'etablir pour
Jerusalem un regime susceptible de donner la
securite a cette ville. A la Sous-Commission 9- ,
la delegation des Etats-Unis a saisi avec joie I'oc-
casion de presenter en detail des propositions
que la Premiere Commission avait etudiee moins
completement que les propositions de tutelle.
Lorsque les deliberations de la Sous-Commission
ont semble devoir aboutir aune conclusion gene­
rale, les Etats-Unis ont redige une proposition et
l'ont presentee le matin meme (document
A/C.l/SC.9/1). Il ne s'agit pas d'une reuvre de
la seule delegation des Etats-Unis. Cette propo­
sition resulte de la discussion et est le fruit des
deliberations de l'AssembIee generale.

La proposition des Etats-Unis a pour but es­
sentiel de satisfaire a deux conditions: toute pro­
position doit reposer Sur l'autorite de la Charte
et, d'autre part, doit etre pratique et tenir compte
de la situation existante et du fait qu'il importe
de mettre fin au conflit. La proposition tend a
appuyer de l'autorite de I'Assemblee les efforts
du Conseil de securite en vue d'une treve. La
deuxieme partie de la proposition repose sur
l'idee de mediation. Puisqu'il est impossible d'em­
ployer la force pour imposer une solution, on a
ete amene a faire de la mediation le theme cen­
tral de I'activite de l'Assemblee. C'est une me­
thode satisfaisante et conforme a la doctrine de
la Charte. On propose, de maniere precise, d'em­
ployer la mediation pour assurer le fonctionne­
ment des services publics communs, pour assu­
rer la protection des Lieux saints et pour favo­
riser un ajustement pacifique de la situation.

Apres avoir examine toutes les possibilites, on
a propose que ces fonctions de mediation soient
exercees par une personnalite designee par un Co­
mite de l'Assemblee compose des representants
de la Chine, de la France, de I'Union des Repu­
bliques socialistes sovietiques, du Royaume-Uni
et des Etats-Unis d'Amerique. Le mediateur ne
serait pas gouverneur ou administrateur, mais
representerait 1'0rganisation des Nations Unies
en offrant ses bons offices. Sa presence en Pales­
tine montrerait clairement que l'Assemblee n'a
pas, avec la fin de la session, interrompu ses ef­
forts pour mettre fin au conflit. La proposition a
pour but de coordonner les travaux des divers
organes de 1'0rganisation des Nations Unies.
Le mediateur collaborerait avec la Commission
de treve du Conseil de securite. Ses fonctions
seraient conformes aux instructions du Conseil
de securite. Il ferait rapport au Conseil de se­
curite et, par I'intermediaire du Secretaire gene­
ral, a tous les Etats Membres. On prevoit egale­
ment que le mediateur pourrait faire appel au
concours d'institutions specialisees et collabore­
rait avec des organismes tels que la Croix-Rouge
internationale. Afin de clarifier la situation, il

246



further exercise of responsibility under the reso­
lution of 29 November 1947.

In order to make clear the implications of
that act, Mr. Jessup re-stated the United States
position. It had supported and voted for the res­
olution of 29 November 1947, but efforts to
find a basis for its peaceful implementation have
been unavailing. It had been clearly revealed
that the resolution could be implemented neither
by force, nor by peaceful means, and it had not
been found possible to agree upon any alterna­
tive for the future government of Palestine, or
upon any provisional regime. It was also clear
that pending further action by the Assembly
concerning the future government of Palestine,
the resolution of 29 November 1947 remained
~s a recommendation although it could not be
Implemented. Although the special session had
not succeeded in finding a solution for the prob­
lem, they were in a position to use the power
of the United Nations in continuing efforts.

The proposal before the Committee was based
upon the conviction that peace depended, not
~pon force, but upon the processes of reconcilia­
tlon. The success of their efforts depended upon
two factors: unity within the organization in
support of peace and willingness of the peoples
of Palestine to apply to the solution of their dif­
ferences the principles not only of the Charter
but of the three religions which looked to Pales­
tine as the Holy Land.

The CHAIRMAN stated that he wished to re­
'ceive any amendments that might be proposed
to the reports of Sub-Committees 9 and 10 by
11 a.m. the following day. He announced that
the plenary meeting of the General Assembly had
been postponed to 3 p.m.

General McNAUGHTON (Canada) said that
the resolution offered by Sub-Committee 9 re­
flected the concensus of that Sub-Committee as
to possible, practicable steps which could be taken
in the emergency. Those measures would supple­
ment those of the Security Council, for it was
proposed to add the good offices of a mediator
to lend his moderating influence. They would
have to rely upon the good judgment of the
mediator in carrying out his functions and be­
speak a moderate attitude on the part of Jews
and Arabs. The Canadian delegation would sup­
port the proposal.

Mr. JESSUP (United States of America)
moved that the Committee proceed to consider
the draft resolution in the report of the Sub­
Committee 9.

Mr. KYROU (Greece) stated that his delega­
tion had submitted an amendment (document
AjC.lj300), to section In of the resolution,

semble souhaitable que l'Assemblee reIeve la
Commission speciale pour la Palestine des fonc­
tions qu'elle exerce en vertu de la resolution du
29 novembre 1947.

Afin de bien preciser le sens de cette proposi­
tion, M. Jessup rappelle la position adoptee par
les Etats-Unis: la delegation des Etats-Unis
d'Amerique a appuye la resolution du 29 novem­
bre 1947 et vote en sa faveur, mais tous les ef­
forts pour trouver les moyens d'appliquer cette
resolution par des voies pacifiques se sont revc­
les vains. Il est devenu clair que la resolution ne
pourrait etre mise en ceuvre ni par la force ni
par des moyens pacifiques et iln'a pas ete possi­
ble de trouver aucune autre solution, a la ques­
tion du futur gouvernement de la Palestine, ni
de 5'entendre sur aucun regime provisoire. Il est
egalement evident qu'aussi longtemps que l'As­
semblee n'aura pas pris une nouvelle decision
en ce qui concerne le futur gouvernement de
la Palestine, la resolution du 29 novembre 1947,
bien qu'elle n'ait pas ete appliquee, subsiste a
titre de recommandation. Bien que la session ex­
traordinaire n'ait pas reussi a trouver une solu­
tion au probleme, il est possible de poursuivre
les efforts deja faits en se basant sur 1'autorite de
1'Organisation des Nations Unies.

La proposition presentee a la Commission re­
pose sur la conviction que la paix depend de
l'emploi non de la force mais de methodes de
conciliation. Le succes des efforts deployes de­
pend de deux facteurs: 1'unite, au sein de 1'Or­
ganisation, des efforts en faveur de la paix et
la volonte des habitants de la Palestine d'appli­
quer pour la solution de leur differend les prin­
cipes qui sont, non seulement ceux de la Charte,
mais aussi ceux des trois religions qui consi­
derent la Palestine comme la Terre sainte.

Le PRESIDENT voudrait recevoir tous les
amendements aux rapports des Sous-Commis­
sions 9 et 10 avant 11 heures, le lendemain. 11
annonce que la seance pleniere de l'AssembIee
est reportee a 15 heures.

Le general McNAUGHTON (Canada) declare
que le projet de resolution presente par la Sous­
Commission 9 represente ce que l'ensemble des
membres de cette Sous-Commission estime etre
des mesures pratiques et applicables que l'on
peut prendre dans la crise actuelle. Ces mesures
completeraient celles qu'a prises le Conseil de
securite car 1'on propose de faire appel a l'in­
fluence apaisante d'un mediateur offrant ses
bons offices. I1 faudr.ait s'en remettre a l'habilete
de ce mediateur et esperer que Juifs et Arabes
adopteront une attitude raisonnable. La delega­
tion canadienne se prononce en faveur de la
proposition.

M. JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) propose
que la Commission passe a 1'examen du projet
de resolution contenu dans le rapport de la
Sous-Commission 9.

M. KYROU (Grece) declare que sa delegation
a propose d'apporter a la troisieme partie
de la resolution un amendement (document

247



which would change the word "suspends" to "re­
lieves", because they believed that a resolution
of such importance should be clear. There al­
ready was the Security Council Truce Commis­
sion. When the proposals of the two Sub-Com­
mittees were approved, there would also be the
mediator, the United Nations commissioner in
Jerusalem, and the Special Municipal Commis­
sioner. Merely to suspend the Palestine Commis­
sion would further confuse the situation and it
would be clearer if it were relieved of its respon­
sibilities. As to the time limit, his delegation felt
that it would be necessary for the Commission to
be enabled to liquidate its activities, but it would
be better not to set a definite date.

Mr. KATz-SuCHY (Poland) observed that
since the representative of Greece had brought
up again an amendment which had been dis­
cussed extensively in the Sub-Committee, his dele­
gation intended to submit again the amendments
which they had put forward there.

Mr. GROMYKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) suggested that the Committee adjourn
in order to be able to attack the problem in the
morning with fresh minds.

Mr. JESSUP (United States of America) con­
ceded that most members of the Committee
were probably fatigued by their strenuous en­
deavours to reach a conclusion. However, most
of them desired to arrive at a decision before
the end of the Mandate, although some of the
discussion did not seem to be directed to that
end. He was of the opinion that they should
proceed despite personal inconvenience. The re­
ports of the two Sub-Committees were before
them. The report of Sub-Committee 9 dealt
with general aspects with which all were familiar.
He suggested to the Chairman that if there were
no further general discussion, they might go
through the report paragraph by paragraph.

Sir Alexander CADOGAN (United Kingdom)
said that it was evident that there was no long­
er any question of imposing any settlement in
Palestine. The United Kingdom delegation al­
ways said that it would have no part in imposing
a settlement on the two parties concerned and
had therefore hitherto abstained from voting.
They were now facing grim reality. Some days
ago the United Kingdom representative, at the
136th meeting, Mr. Creech-Jones, had sug­
gested an approach to the problem by truce and
mediation and the draft resolution of Sub-Com­
mittee 9 appeared to give effect to that sugges­
tion. It might be objected that the draft
resolution was inadequate, but they could not
produce a resounding structure, and the solution
of the problem had to depend upon the !Tood
will of the parties concerned. The U~ited

A/C.l/300) tendant a remplacer le mot "sus­
pend" par le mot "releve", parce qu'elle estime
qu'une resolution d'une telle importance doit
etre parfaitement claire. Il existe deja une Com­
mision de treve du Conseil de securite. Lorsque
les propositions des deux Sous-Commissions au­
ront ete approuvees, il y aura aussi le mediateur,
le commissaire de 1'0rganisation des Nations
Unies a Jerusalem et le Commissaire municipal
special. En se contentant de suspendre l'exercice
des fonctions de la Commission de Palestine, on
ne ferait que compliquer la situation. La situa­
tion serait done plus claire si l'on relevait cette
Commission de ses responsabilites. En ce qui
concerne le delai, la delegation grecque estime
qu'il faut laisser a la Commission le temps de
liquider ses affaires, et qu'il est preferable de ne
pas fixer de date precise.

M. KATz-SuCHY (Pologne) declare que puis­
que le representant de la Grece a presente de
nouveau un amendement qui a ete discute en
detail au sein de la Sous-Commission, la dele­
gation polonaise se propose de presenter a nou­
veau les amendements qu'elle a deja soumis a
cette Sous-Commission.

M. GROMYKO (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) propose de lever la seance afin
que les membres de la Commission puissent s'at­
taquer au probleme le lendemain matin, avec
l'esprit repose.

M. JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) recon­
nait que les membres de la Commission sont
probablement fatigues des efforts acharnes qu'ils
ont deployes pour arriver a une conclusion. Ce­
pendant, la plupart d'entre eux desirent aboutir
a une decision avant la fin du Mandat bien que
certaines interventions ne semblent pas tendre
dans ce sens. Le representant des Etats-Unis es­
time que la Commission doit poursuivre ses
travaux en depit de la fatigue. La Commission
est saisie des rapports des deux Sous-Commis­
sions. Le rapport de la Sous-Commission 9 traite
de considerations generales qui sont familieres a
chacun des representants. M. Jessup demande
au President, si la discussion generale est ter­
minee, d'aborder l'examen du rapport, para­
graphe par paragraphe.

Sir Alexander CADOGAN (Royaume-Uni) de­
clare qu'il n'est evidemment plus question d'im­
poser aucun reglement en Palestine. La delega­
tion du Royaume-Uni a toujours affirme qu'elle
ne s'associerait a aucune decision imposant un
reglement aux deux parties interessees et elle
s'est, jusqu'a present, abstenue de voter. La
Commission se trouve maintenant en face d'une
sombre realite. Il y a quelques jours, M. Creech­
Jones, representant du Royaume-Uni, avait
propose, au cours de la 136eme seance, que 1'0n
cherche a resoudre le probleme au moyen d'une
treve et par voie de mediation et le projet de
resolution emanant de la Sous-Commission 9
semble s'appuyer sur cette suggestion. On dira
peut-etre que ce projet de resolution est bien
modeste, mais la Sous-Commission n'etait pas
en mesure de produire un document plus pre-

248



The CHAIRMAN believed that they should not
vote on the draft resolution that evening, so that
members who were not ready would be given a
chance to state their views in the discussion.

Mr. VILFAN (Yugoslavia) said that several
representatives had expressed their desire to take
part in the general discussion. The Yugoslav
delegation also desired to take part, but had not
had enough time to consider the proposal. He
thought that they should therefore finish the gen­
eral discussion before proceeding to an article by
article examination, and that if there were no
more speakers it would be better to adjourn and
to be able to start fresh in the morning.

Kingd~m del~gati~n would .suport that draft I tentieux et la solution du problcme ne eut de-
resolutIOn, as It belIeved that It opened the road pendre que de 1 b l' d P .

1
. 1 . a onne vo onte es partIes

to an u tImate so utIOn for peace in Palestine interesse'es La de'l' t' d R U .. . . ega I?n ~ oyaume- map-
puyera le proJet de resolutIOn car cIle estime
qu'il prepare la voie pour ude solution finale
asurant la paix en Palestine.

Le PRESIDENT prefcre ne pas mettre aux voix
le projet de resolution le soir meme, ccIa afin de
donner aux membres de la Commission qui ne
sont pas prets a se prononcer la possibilite d'ex­
poser leurs vues.

. M. VILFAN (Yougoslavie) declare que plu­
sleurs representants ont exprime le desir de
prendre part a la discussion generale. La dele­
gation yougoslave desire dIe aussi y prendre
part, mais n'a pas eu assez de temps pour
examiner la proposition. M. Vilfan estime qu'il
faut terminer la discussion generale avant d'a­
border l'examen du rapport, article par article,
et que s'il n'y a plus d'orateurs inscrits, il serait
preferable de lever la seance afin de pouvoir
recommencer a travailler, dans de bonnes con-
ditions, le lendemain matin.

Mr. GROMYKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said that he would express his opinion
on the proposal as a whole, but that he had
been deprived so far of an opportunity to do so
as he had not received a text until late. The state­
ment made by the representative of the United
States had served to confuse the situation still
more.

M. GROMYKO (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) declare qu'il entend exprimer
son opinion sur l'ensemble de la proposition,
mais qu'il a ete empeche jusqu'ici de le faire,
ayant rec;u trop tard le texte du rapport. La de­
claration du representant des Etats-Unis n'a fait
que rendre la situation encore plus confuse.

The Committee could not be guided by the
desire of certain delegations to adopt a decision
by a certain hour the next day. Perhaps the peo­
ple of Palestine would be grateful to the General
Assembly when the British retired from Pales­
tine at 6 p.m. the next day. Perhaps the United
States representative wished to speak for every­
body else, but he did not have the appropriate
credentials. Mr. Gromyko said that he was not
prepared to consider the resolution that night,
but would present his views at the next meeting.

The meeting rose at 10.35 p.m.

La Commission ne peut se laisser influencer
par le desir de certaines delegations d'adopter
une decision avant une heure deterrninee du len­
demain. Peut-etre les populations de Palestine
seront-elles reconnaissantes a l'AssembIee gene­
rale lorsque les autorites britanniques quitteront
la Palestine, le lendemain a 18 heures. Le re­
presentant des Etats-Unis entend, peut-ctre, par­
ler au nom de tout le monde, mais il n'a pas
qualite pour le faire. M. Gromyko declare qu'il
n'est pas pret a exposer ses vues sur la resolu­
tion le soir meme mais qu'il parlera au cours
de la prochaine seance.

La seance est levee a 22 h. 35.

HUNDRED AND FORTY-FIRST MEETING

Held at Lake Success, New York, on Friday,
14 M ay 1948, at 10.30 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. T. F. TSIANG (China).

CENT-QUARANTE ET UNIEME SEANCE

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, le vendrcdi
14 mai, a10 h. 30.

President: }.L T. F. TSIA:-:G (Chine).

27. Suite de I'examen du rapport de la
Sous-Commission 9 (document A/C.
1/299

Le PRESIDENT rappelle qu'il a decide, a la
seance precedente, que tous le" amel1?C?lents au
projet de resolution des ~?\IS-COl:nn.m$lOm 9 ct
10 devaient lui ctre soumlS par cent, avant 11
heures du matin. ]usqu'a prc."Cnt, ~:s a!llcndc­
mcnts lui ont ete soumis par lcs dclcg-atlon~ dc
la Grcce (document A/C.I/300) et de la :\ou-

27. Continuation of the discussion of the
report of Sub-CommiHee 9 (document

A/C.1/299)
The CHAIRMAN drew attention to his ruling

at the previous meeting that all am~ndments to
the draft resolutions of Sub-CommIttees 9 and
10 should be submitted in writing before 11 a.m.
So far amendments had been received from the
delegations of Greece (document A/C.l/300)
and New Zealand (document A/C.l/30l). He

249


